# STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT IV

# RECEIVED

06-15-2015

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

#### Appeal No. 2015AP000332 Columbia County Circuit Court Case Nos. 2014TR001077 2014TR001254

#### COLUMBIA COUNTY,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

JESSICA N. JOHNSON

Defendant-Appellant.

AN APPEAL FROM THE JUDGEMENT OF CONVICTION AND THE DECISION OF THE TRIAL **COURT DENYING THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT'S** MOTION FOR SUPPRESSION OF EVIDENCE IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR COLUMBIA COUNTY, THE HONORABLE DANIEL GEORGE, S. JUDGE, PRESIDING

THE BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT JESSICA N. JOHNSON

#### STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Did the anonymous tip coupled with the observations of Deputy Kaschinske rise to the level of suspicion to continue the detention requiring Ms. Johnson to perform field sobriety tests?

The trial court answered: Yes.

### STATEMENT AS TO ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

Because this is an appeal within Wis. Stats. Sec. 752.31(2), the resulting decision is not eligible for publication. Because the issues in this appeal may be resolved through the application of established law, the briefs in this matter should adequately address the arguments; oral argument will not be necessary.

#### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE/FACTS**

The defendant-appellant, Jessica N. Johnson (Ms. Johnson) was charged in the Columbia County Circuit Court with having operated a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant and operating a motor vehicle with a prohibited alcohol concentration contrary to Wis. Stat. §346.63(1)(a) and (b) occurring on February 23, 2014. On March 20, 2014, Ms. Johnson, by counsel, entered a not guilty plea to the charges, and filed a motion for suppression of evidence challenging the detention and arrest of Ms. Johnson. A hearing on said motion was held on June 6, 2014. The court issued an oral ruling on said motion on July 30, 2014, denying the defendant's motion, the Honorable Daniel S. George, judge, Columbia County Circuit Court presiding. (R. 43:1-8). A written Order denying the defendant's motion was filed on August 6, 2014. (R.16:1/ A.App. 1).

A jury trial was held on November 13, 2014. The jury found Ms. Johnson guilty of both charges.

On February 11, 2015, the defendant timely filed a Notice of Appeal. The appeal stems from the Court's Order denying Ms. Johnson's motion for suppression of evidence.

Facts in support of this appeal were adduced at the motion hearing held on June 6, 2014 and were introduced through the testimony of Columbia County Sheriff Deputy Gregory Kaschinske. Deputy Kaschinske testified that he was working as a deputy on February 23, 2014, when he received a dispatch regarding an anonymous driving complaint. (R.42:6/ A.App. 2). The complaint indicated that a vehicle last seen on Highway 22 and Attoe Road was traveling southbound at ninety miles per hour. (R.42:7/ A.App. 3). Deputy Kaschinske was in the area and when he arrived at Highway 22 on Highway 60, he immediately proceeded southbound to try to catch a vehicle he saw in the distance proceeding south on Highway 51. Dispatch indicated that the vehicle was a blue van, and the driver had allegedly opened the door and vomited. (R.42:11/ A.App. 7). As Deputy Kaschinske was trying to catch up to the vehicle in the distance, he observed a blue van parked in the "for sale parking" area of Johnson Sales". (R.42:8/ A.App. 4). According to Deputy Kaschinske, the vehicle was running and the headlights were on. Id. Dispatch was given a license plate number, and Deputy Kaschinske observed that the plate of the vehicle in the lot matched that of the number given to dispatch. (R.42:9/ A.App. 5). Deputy Kachinske activated his emergency lights

and pulled into the lot to investigate the vehicle. (R.42:10, 19-20/A.App. 6,12-13).

When Ms. Johnson opened the door, Deputy Kaschinske observed a strong smell of intoxicant coming from inside the vehicle. (R.42:11/ A.App. 7). However, Deputy Kaschinske observed no signs of vomit in or on the vehicle. *Id*. In their conversation, Ms. Johnson told Deputy Kaschinske that she was at a fire department event with her husband and that she had consumed some alcohol. (R.42:12/ A.App. 8). Deputy Kaschinske then asked Ms. Johnson to exit the vehicle to perform field sobriety tests. (R.42:14/ A.App. 9). It was cold outside, and Ms. Johnson said she only had a coat, no gloves or hat. *Id*.

Deputy Kaschinske performed the horizontal gaze nystagmus test (HGN) outside the vehicle, and observed six of six clues. Kaschinske observed that during the HGN test Ms. Johnson was exhibiting signs of shaking due to the cold, and because of this Kaschinske transported Ms. Johnson to the Arlington Fire Department to perform the remainder of the tests. (R.42:16/ A.App. 10). After transporting Ms. Johnson to the fire department and performing the additional tests, Kaschinske

3

arrested Ms. Johnson for operating a motor vehicle while impaired.

On cross examination, Kaschinske conceded that the original complainant did not identify the driver of the vehicle as a female. (R.42:17/ A.App. 11). Furthermore, he conceded that he did not observe any erratic or deviant driving, and after watching the video of the incident, testified that he did activate his lights as he entered parking lot. (R.42:19-20/ A.App. 12-13). Deputy Kaschinske also agree that the odor of intoxicant simply indicates someone had consumed alcohol, and does not necessarily indicate impairment. (R.42:20/ A.App. 13). Furthermore, Ms. Johnson did not exhibit any motor coordination problems, and her speech was unimpaired. (R.42:21/ A.App. 14). More importantly, Deputy Kachinske volunteered that the only reason he had Ms. Johnson perform field sobriety tests was "based on the odor I could smell from her and inside the vehicle and the fact that she told me she had been drinking earlier." Id. However, Kachinske conceded that he never asked Ms. Johnson when she started and stopped drinking and never inquired as to how much alcohol Ms. Johnson had consumed. Id. By written argument, Ms. Johnson, by counsel, contended that Deputy Kaschinske did not have the requisite

level of suspicion to detain Ms. Johnson initially and did not have the requisite level of suspicion to continue the detention by having Ms. Johnson exit the vehicle for field sobriety testing. (R.15:1-2/ A.App. 21-22). The County by written argument claimed that the initial and continued detention were justified. (R.14:1-2/ A.App. 19-20).

On July 30, 2014, the court issued an Oral ruling denying Ms. Johnson's motion for suppression of evidence. The court found that there was an anonymous call alerting the deputy to Ms. Johnson's vehicle. (R.43:4/ A.App. 15). The court found that after making contact with Ms. Johnson, the deputy observed a strong odor of intoxicant, and the defendant acknowledged consuming alcoholic beverages. (R.43:5/ A.App. 16). The court found that even without the anonymous call, the deputy had reasonable suspicion to approach the vehicle. The court pointed to the "circumstances of the timing, time of day and location" of the vehicle in a closed business. (R. 43:6-7/ A.App. 16-17). The court found that "everything was able to be corroborated by the officer in discovering this vehicle" and denied Ms. Johnson's However, while the type of motion. (R.43:6/ A.App. 16). vehicle and plate number were corroborated, there is absolutely nothing in the record that corroborated the anonymous caller's

statement that the driver was a female, speeding or vomited out of the vehicle.

A written Order denying said motion was filed on August 6, 2014. Ms. Johnson timely filed a Notice of Appeal on February 11, 2015.

#### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

On appeal, the circuit court's factual findings are reviewed pursuant to the clearly erroneous standard. The appellate court will uphold those factual findings unless they are clearly erroneous. *State v. Popke*, 2009 WI 37, ¶10, 317 Wis.2d 118, 765 N.W.2d 569. However, applying those facts to constitutional principles is a question of law that is reviewed *de novo. Id.* 

#### ARGUMENT

## A. THE ANONYMOUS TIP COUPLED WITH THE ODOR OF INTOXICANT DID NOT RISE TO THE LEVEL OF SUSPICION NECESSARY TO EXTEND THE DETENTION OF MS. JOHNSON FOR FIELD SOBRIETY TESTS

Temporarily detaining an individual during a traffic stop constitutes a "seizure" of "persons" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. *Whren v. United States*, 517 U.S. 806, 809-10 (1996), *State v. Post*, 2007 WI 60, ¶10, 301 Wis.2d 1, 733 N.W.2d 634. The Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article 1 Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution protect individuals against unreasonable searches and seizures. Thus, a traffic stop is lawful only if it is reasonable under Fourth Amendment jurisprudence. Id. at 810. If an officer has probable cause to believe a traffic violation has occurred, an officer may conduct a traffic stop. State v. Gaulrapp, 207 Wis.2d 600, 558 N.W.2d 696 (Ct.App. 1996). An investigative detention must be supported by a reasonable suspicion grounded in specific articulable facts and reasonable inferences from those facts that an individual is or was violating the law. State v. Colstad, 2003 WI App 25, ¶8, 260 Wis. 2d 406, 659 N.W.2d 394. An inchoate and unparticularized hunch will not suffice. State v. Guzy, 139 Wis.2d 663, 675, 407 N.W.2d 548 (1987).

Initially, the Court must determine if the initial detention of Ms. Johnson was justified. If so, the court must determine whether during the initial detention, Deputy Kachinske became aware of additional "suspicious factors or additional information that would give rise to, an objective, articulable suspicion that criminal activity [was] afoot..." *State v. Malone,* 2004 WI 108, ¶24, 274 Wis.2d 540, 683 N.W.2d 1, (**citing** *State v. Betow,* 226 Wis.2d 90, 94-94, 593 N.W.2d 499 (Ct.App. 1999)). However, the additional facts must be sufficient to give rise to an articulable suspicion that Ms. Johnson was committing an offense separate from that for which the initial detention made. That is, the additional facts must provide a reasonable suspicion that Ms. Johnson was operating her motor vehicle while impaired.

The initial detention herein was made based on both an alleged anonymous tip and the location of Ms. Johnson's vehicle. The anonymous tip did not provide Deputy Kaschinske with sufficient reasonable suspicion that Ms. Johnson was operating her motor vehicle while impaired.

"In some circumstances, information contained in an informant's tip may justify an investigative stop." *State v. Rutzinski*, 2001 WI 22, ¶17, 241 Wis.2d 729, 738, 623 N.W.2d 516. In determining whether a tip is sufficient, courts look at the "reliability and content" of the tip. *Id.* at ¶¶19-26. "In assessing the reliability of a tip, due weight must be given to: (1) the informant's veracity and (2) the informant's basis of knowledge." *Id at* ¶18. The court looks at the totality of the circumstances in determining whether a tip rises to the level of reasonable suspicion. Reliability, veracity and basis of knowledge are all

highly relevant factors in determining the value of a tip. Alabama v. White, 496 U.S. 325, 328, 110 S.Ct.2412 (1990).

In determining the veracity and reliability of an informant, it is critical to determine whether the informant is known or anonymous. A known tipster increases the reliability of the tip and corroboration of the details of the tip are not required. *see Adams v. Williams*, 407 U.S. 143 (1972). "An anonymous tip alone seldom demonstrates the informant's basis of knowledge or veracity." *Alabama v. White*, 496 U.S. 325, at 329, 110S.Ct. 2412, 110 L.Ed.2d 301 (1990).

In *Rutzinski*, the court concluded that if the tipster is anonymous, as in this case, the officer must gather sufficient information to corroborate the tip. *Rutzinski* at 741. Sufficient corroboration of the information in the tip is essential. A failure to sufficiently corroborate the details of the tip diminishes the tip's value and reliability to such a degree that a seizure based on that information could violate the provisions of the Fourth Amendment.

Recently, in *Navarette v. California*, 572 U.S. \_\_\_\_, 134 S.Ct. 1683, 188 L.Ed.2d 680 (2014), the court held that under appropriate circumstances, the tip itself could provide sufficient indicia of reliability justifying the stop. In *Navarette*, the court

found that an anonymous tip describing a potential drunk driver might provide reasonable suspicion without additional corroboration. The *Navarette* court held that a tip reporting erratic driving, weaving all over the roadway, almost causing a collision, running a vehicle off the roadway or driving on the median would provide sufficient reasonable suspicion of intoxicated driving to justify an investigative stop. However, the Court specifically found that "not all traffic infractions imply intoxication." For instance, a speeding or seatbelt violation are "so tenuously connected to drunk driving that a stop on those grounds alone would be constitutionally suspect." *Id.* at 1689-1691.

Here, the complainant described a speeding violation, and a person exiting the vehicle and vomiting. However, the anonymous tip provided no description of the person exiting the vehicle. The tip is tenuous at best inasmuch as it did not even provide the sex of the person exiting the vehicle. Furthermore, the report was that the vehicle was speeding. A speeding violation without more would not provide the officer with reasonable suspicion to suspect that the driver was operating the vehicle while impaired. Thus, the tip alone would not have provided Deputy Kaschinske with the requisite level of suspicion that Ms. Johnson operated her vehicle while impaired justifying the initial detention.

Moreover, after the initial detention, the observations made by Deputy Kachinske did not provide him with sufficient additional articulable suspicion that Ms. Johnson was operating a motor vehicle while impaired thus justifying her continued detention for field sobriety testing. In *Betow*, the court held that "[i]f, during a valid traffic stop, the officer becomes aware of additional suspicious factors which are sufficient to give rise to an articulable suspicion that the person has committed or is committing an offense or offenses separate and distinct from the acts that prompted the officer's intervention in the first place, the stop may be extended and a new investigation begun." *Id.* at 94-95.

"The question of what constitutes reasonable suspicion is a common sense test: under all the facts and circumstances present, what would a reasonable police officer reasonably suspect in light of his or her training and experience." *State v. Young,* 212 Wis.2d 417, 424, 569 N.W.2d 84 (Ct.App. 1997). To meet this test, the officer must show specific and articulable facts, which taken together with rationale inferences from those

11

facts, reasonably warrant the officer's continued intrusion. *Terry v. Ohio*, 392 U.S.1, 21, 88 S.Ct. 1868, 20 L. Ed.2d 889 (1968).

Here. Kaschinske impermissibly Deputy and unconstitutionally extended the stop when he asked Ms. Johnson to exit the vehicle to perform field sobriety tests. At that moment. Kaschinske observed an odor of intoxicant. He made no observations of Ms. Johnson's speech, eyes, or motor coordination suggesting that Ms. Johnson was impaired. He made no observations of erratic driving, and no observations that corroborated the anonymous caller's statement that Ms. Johnson This further diminishes the was vomiting outside vehicle. reliability of the anonymous tip inasmuch as Kaschinske acknowledged that he observed no signs of vomiting.

Aside from the vehicle description, Deputy Kaschinske corroborated no details of the tip. The observations of Ms. Johnson after the initial contact did not rise to the level of reasonable suspicion to continue to detain Ms. Johnson for field sobriety testing. Because of the above, the continued detention of Ms. Johnson violated her right to be free from unreasonable seizures thus violating her rights under both the Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution.

#### CONCLUSION

Because Deputy Kaschinske did not possess sufficient reasonable suspicion to extend the detention of Ms. Johnson for field sobriety testing, the trial court erred in denying her motion for suppression of evidence. The Court should reverse the trial court's ruling and vacate the judgment of conviction.