# RECEIVED

# 07-15-2015

## STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT IV

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Appeal No. 2015AP000332

Columbia County Circuit Case No. 2014TR001077 2014TR001254

\_\_\_\_\_

Columbia County,
Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

Jessica N. Johnson,
Defendant-Appellant.

#### PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COLUMBIA COUNTY, BRANCH 1, THE HONORABLE DANIEL S GEORGE, PRESIDING

Jordan A Lippert Assistant District Attorney

Columbia County, Wisconsin Attorney for Plaintiff-Respondent

State Bar No. 1086914

400 DeWitt St PO Box 638

Portage, WI 53901 Telephone: (608)742-9650

#

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

Did Deputy Greg Kaschinske have reasonable suspicion to detain Jessica Johnson for the purposes of an OWI investigation after an anonymous tipster reported that a blue Dodge Minivan with the license place of "WILDFR" was driving 90 miles per hour, and that driver of the blue Dodge Minivan had opened the door to vomit and where Deputy Kaschinske later observed the blue Dodge Minivan with the license place of "WILDFR" parked, but running, outside of a closed business at approximately 2:00 a.m., and where Jessica Johnson was the only occupant of the blue Dodge Minivan.

The Circuit Court answered: Yes.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A jury found Jessica Johnson guilty of operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated and operating a motor vehicle with a prohibited alcohol concentration on November 13, 2014. She now appeals the Circuit Court's July 30, 2014 order denying her motion to suppress evidence. The Circuit Court heard the testimony at a June 6, 2014 hearing. Deputy Greg Kaschinske of the Columbia County Sheriff's Office was the only witness to testify.

At approximately 2:00 a.m. on Sunday, February 23, 2014 Deputy Kaschinske received a dispatch regarding a driving complaint. R. 42: 6. Dispatch informed Deputy Kaschinske that an anonymous party reported a vehicle southbound on Highway 22 was going approximately 90 mph. R. 42: 6-7. Deputy Kaschinske was "right in the immediate area when the call came out." R. 42: 6-7. Dispatch advised that the anonymous reporting party said that the driver of the blue Dodge van had stopped the vehicle and opened the door to vomit. R. 42: 11, 43: 5. Based upon the reported speed and reported direction of travel, Deputy Kaschinske believed that the vehicle would have already passed the intersection of Highway 22 and Highway 60 when he himself got to that location. R: 42: 7. Deputy

Kaschinske headed southbound on Highway 51 in an attempt to catch up to a vehicle he observed in the distance. R. 42:

As Deputy Kaschinske was trying to catch up to the vehicle, he was advised that the vehicle that he was looking for was a blue Dodge van with a license plate of "WILDFR." R. 42: 7, 8-9. Deputy Kaschinske shortly thereafter observed a blue Dodge van with the "WILDFR" license parked in the "vehicle for sale" parking lot of Johnson Sales as he was driving Southbound on Highway 51. R. 42: 8. The blue Dodge van was not parked like any other vehicle in the parking lot and Johnson Sales was closed at that time. R. 42: 8-9. Even so, the lights of the blue Dodge van were on and Deputy Kaschinske could tell that the vehicle was running. R. 42: 8.

Deputy Kaschinske pulled in behind the van and activated his emergency lights as he was pulling into the parking lot. R. 42: 9, 18. Jessica Johnson was sitting in the driver's seat and was the only person in the vehicle.

R. 42: 10. Ms. Johnson emerged from the van as Deputy

Kaschinske approached on foot. R. 42: 20. Deputy

Kaschinske could smell a strong odor of intoxicants coming from inside the vehicle, and later, coming from Ms. Johnson

herself. R. 42: 11, 12. Ms. Johnson admitted drinking. R. 42: 12.

Ms. Johnson advances two arguments. First, she contends that Deputy Kaschinske lacked the requisite reasonable suspicion to initiate an investigative stop at the moment of first contact. Second, Ms. Johnson argues that Deputy Kaschinske could not have reasonably suspected that she had been driving while intoxicated and thus violated her constitutional rights by "expanding" the stop to have her perform Standardized Field Sobriety Tests (SFSTs).

#### ARGUMENT

#### I. Standard of Review

To resolve the issue presented in this case, the Court must determine whether Deputy Kaschinske reasonably suspected that Jessica Johnson was operating a Motor Vehicle While intoxicated. As such, the question presented is a mixed question of fact and law. State v. Popke, 2009 WI 37, ¶ 10, 317 Wis. 118, 765 N.W.2d 569. This Court should review the Circuit Court's findings of fact for only clear error. State v. Post, 2007 WI 60, ¶ 8, 301 Wis.2d 1, 733 N.W.2d 634. Application of those facts to

Constitutional principles should be reviewed independently. Id.

Traditionally, the Wisconsin Supreme Court has interpreted Article I Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution in accordance with the United States Supreme Court's Interpretation of the Fourth Amendment. State v. Williams, 2001 WI 21, at ¶ 18.

- II. Based upon an anonymous driving complaint, Deputy

  Kaschinske had an objectively reasonable suspicion that the

  driver of a blue Dodge van with a "WILDFR" license plate

  was operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated.
- A. Police may rely on an anonymous informant so long at the information exhibits sufficient indicia of reliability.

In State v. Rutzinski, 2001 WI 22, ¶ 17, 241 Wis.2d 729, 623 N.W.2d 516, the Wisconsin Supreme Court held that an anonymous phone call can give rise to a reasonable suspicion so long as the call contains sufficient indicia of reliability. In assessing the reliability of an informant's tip, the Court must give due weight to "(1) the informant's veracity; and (2) the informant's basis of knowledge." Id. at ¶ 18. In assessing veracity and basis of knowledge the court must examine the totality of the

circumstances, rather than isolating the basis and veracity as elements of a more rigid test. Id.

In Rutzinski, the Supreme Court considered a case where a police officer overheard a dispatch in which an unidentified driver called in and reported a black pickup truck weaving within its lane, varying its speed from too fast to too slow, and tailgating. Id. at ¶ 4. Dispatch later issued a second dispatch indicating that the caller was still on the phone and providing the officer with updated information regarding the location of the vehicles as they traveled down the road. Id. at  $\P$  5. The officer surmised that the caller and the suspect vehicle were heading in his direction. Id. When the officer observed a black pickup truck matching the description dispatch had provided, he began to follow. Id. at ¶ 6. Dispatch informed the officer that the reporting party was in front of the black truck and could see that the officer was following the correct vehicle. Id. The officer then initiated the traffic stop of the black pickup truck without himself ever observing signs of erratic driving. Id. at  $\P$  7.

The Wisconsin Supreme Court found that the tip was sufficiently reliable for three reasons. First, the

Supreme Court reasoned that even though the caller was anonymous at the time the stop occurred (and ultimately remained anonymous) that police could have gleaned the identity of the caller as the caller had revealed that he or she was in the vehicle ahead of the black truck, which police could have stopped. Id. at ¶ 32. The ultimate anonymity of the caller did not negate the otherwise reliable call.

Second, the call enjoyed increased reliability because the caller revealed a reliable basis of for the reported knowledge—personal observation. <u>Id</u>. at ¶ 33. The Court reasoned that police were able to verify the basis for the caller's report based upon the updated information regarding the direction and location of the suspect vehicle. Id.

Third, the Court explained that the when the police ultimately verified predictive information provided, police had further reason to believe that the caller had a reliable basis for the report. The Court analogized the verified predictive behavior to that of an informant with "inside information." Id.

More recently, the United States Supreme Court has weighed in on circumstances similar to Rutzinski and this

case. Navarette v. California, 572 U.S. \_\_\_\_\_, 134 S. Ct.

1683. In that case, police had the following report from a

911 caller: "Showing southbound Highway 1 at mile marker

88, Silver Ford 15 pickup. Plate of 8-David-94925. Ran

the reporting party off the roadway and was last seen

approximately five [minutes] ago." Id. at 1687.

Approximately 18 minutes after the original call, officers

located the described vehicle approximately 19 miles south

of its last reported location. Id. at 1689. Five minutes

after first spotting the truck, police initiated a traffic

stop without observing any driving violations. Id. at

1687.

The United States Supreme Court held that the anonymous report was sufficiently reliable for police to credit and that the call raised a reasonable suspicion that the driver of the truck was drunk driving. Id. at 1688-1689, 1690. The Supreme Court reasoned that the reporting party necessarily claimed eyewitness knowledge of the alleged dangerous driving and therefore had a reliable basis for his or her knowledge. Id. at 1689. The Supreme Court also pointed out that when police confirmed the location of the specific vehicle where they could have inferred it might be based upon the 911 call, the police

had reason to think that the reporting party was telling the truth about the dangerous driving as well. Id. The United States Supreme Court also counted the caller's use of a 911 emergency network—which had some features that allow for identifying and tracing callers—as a factor adding to the reliability of the caller. Id. at 1689—90. Finally, the United Supreme Court credited the contemporaneous nature of the report as a factor further bolstering the reliability of the information. Id. at 1689 Despite the identity of the caller being unknown to the police who initiated the stop, and ultimately unknown by the United States Supreme Court, the call was otherwise reliable to merit reasonable police action. Id. at 1688—1689.

After holding that the information in the call was sufficiently reliable, the Court determined that the report also established a reasonable suspicion that the driver of the silver Ford truck was driving while intoxicated.

According to the Supreme Court, the report known to police bore "too great a resemblance to the paradigmatic manifestation of drunk driving." Id. at 1691.

B. The tip in this case exhibited sufficient indicia of reliability.

First, the information provided by the caller in this case allowed police to infer that the reporting driver was another motorist and making the report based upon personal observation. As in <a href="Rutzinski">Rutzinski</a> and <a href="Navarette">Navarette</a>, the reporting party provided the color of the vehicle and the license plate suggesting close personal observation of the vehicle. The information regarding Ms. Johnson's location and direction of travel, when verified by police further established the caller as an individual who could only provide such accurate information from a reliable basis.

So, similar to the callers in <a href="Rutzinski">Rutzinski</a> and <a href="Navarette">Navarette</a> the reporting party necessarily claimed first hand observations and therefore had a reliable basis for the driving complaint.

Further, the predictive information, once verified, added to the credibility of the caller generally. As the United States Supreme Court recognized in Navarette, the verified information gave additional "reason to think that the 911 caller in this case was telling the truth."

Navarette, 134 S.Ct at 1689. Identically to the facts in Navarette, the reporting party in this case described a specific vehicle by its make, model, license plate, and the direction of travel. The caller in this case actually gave

more details that were even more predictive about the location of the vehicle by describing its unusually fast speed. Deputy Kaschinske used the speed and direction of travel reported to infer where the blue Dodge should be located. Because the predictive behavior was reliable, Deputy Kaschinske was entitled to credit the descriptive information too.

Just as in <u>Rutzinski</u> and in <u>Navarette</u>, the caller in this case was making a reliable contemporaneous report.

Deputy Kaschinske testified that he was "right in the immediate area" when dispatch aired the report. R. 42: 6.

Later, Deputy Kaschinske testified that "This happened so quick because I was right in the immediate area, that dispatch information was somewhat delayed." R. 42: 7.

Given how quickly Deputy Kaschinske was able to respond to the location, and how quickly he was able to find the suspect vehicle, he could only infer that the caller in this case was making the sort of contemporaneous report relied upon by the United States Supreme Court in Navarette.

Though it is not clear whether the caller in this case was using the 911 emergency call network, given that this caller was in contact with police dispatcher and the

necessary first hand observations, the caller could not have absolutely expected complete anonymity. Regardless, the caller in this case, just as the callers in <a href="Navarette">Navarette</a> and <a href="Rutzinski">Rutzinski</a>, was anonymous at the moment the stop occurred and ultimately not identified in the record. The anonymity present in this case does not negate the ultimate reliability. Just as police were entitled to rely on the information provided by anonymous parties in <a href="Rutzinski">Rutzinski</a> and <a href="Navarette">Navarette</a>, so too was Deputy Kaschinske entitled to rely on the report in this case after the call exhibited other indicia of reliability.

C. The content of the tip supports reasonable suspicion that the driver of the blue Dodge van was operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated.

Reasonable suspicion exists where a reasonable officer, in light of his or her training and experience, would be warranted in suspecting that an individual has committed, was committing, or was about to commit a crime.

State v. Post, 2007 WI 60 at ¶ 13. In determining whether or not Deputy Kaschinske possessed the reasonable suspicion he needed to temporarily detain Ms. Johnson, this Court must assess the totality of the circumstances known to Deputy Kaschinske. State v. Williams, 2001 WI 21, at ¶ 22.

Driving a motor vehicle while intoxicated is an offense that consists of two elements. Wis. Stat. § 346.63 (1). A defendant meets the first element if he or she drives a motor vehicle on a public highway. Id. A defendant meets the second element if he or she is under the influence of an intoxicant at the time of driving on the public highway. Id.

Instead of confronting the totality of the circumstances known to Deputy Kaschinske, Ms. Johnson attempts to isolate and dismiss the known facts. For example, she characterizes the tip as a report of a speeding vehicle, and nothing more. Def. Br. at 10. That is not this case. Deputy Kaschinske testified that Dispatch had also relayed that the driver of the blue Dodge Van "was actually stopped on Highway 22 at one point and that he or she saw the driver get out of the vehicle — or open up the door of the vehicle and vomit." R. 42: 11.

The facts reported to Deputy Kaschinske leave no doubt that the caller was reporting that someone was driving a blue Dodge van on a public highway. Accordingly, the call would raise a reasonable suspicion of drunk driving violation if Deputy Kaschinske could reasonably suspect that the driver was intoxicated.

Contrasting this case with the facts in Navarette, clearly demonstrates that Deputy Kachinske reasonably suspected that the driver of the blue Dodge van was intoxicated. Stopping a vehicle to vomit and then speeding off at approximately 90 miles per hour are the sort of "paradigmatic manifestations" that a police officer with "commonsense" would recognize as being tied to intoxication. Navarette, at 1690-1691. The fact that these events occurred at approximately 2:00 am on a weekend only serve to increase the reasonable inference that the driver was intoxicated. See, State v. Allen, 226 Wis. 2d 66, 593 N.W2d 504 (Ct. App. 1999), and, State v. Waldner, 206 Wis.2d 51, 556 N.W.2d 681, (1995) (Time of day is a relevant factor in a reasonable suspicion inquiry). Based upon the known facts, a reasonable officer in Deputy Kaschinske's position could reasonably suspect that the driver of the blue Dodge van was driving while intoxicated. Therefore, Deputy Kaschinske's seizure did not violate the reasonableness requirement of the Fourth Amendment and the Circuit Court correctly denied Ms. Johnson's motion.

III. Deputy Kaschinske had reasonable suspicion to initiate an investigative stop because the blue Dodge van

was parked at a closed auto dealership at approximately 2:00 a.m.

While reasonable suspicion must be determined in the totality of the circumstances, it is worth noting that independently of whether Deputy Kaschinske could rely upon the anonymous driving complaint, the Circuit Court held that Deputy Kaschinske was justified in conducting an investigative stop given that Ms. Johnson was parked unusually outside of a closed business at approximately 2:00 a.m. R. 43: 6. Deputy Kaschinske testified that when he observed this vehicle it was the only vehicle in the lot that was out of place. R. 42: 13-14. Under the circumstances, a reasonable officer in Deputy Kaschinske's shoes could reasonably suspect that criminal activity was afoot. See, 4 LaFave, Search & Seizure § 9.5(e) (5th ed. 2014) (Especially during the hours of darkness, police have a sufficient basis to stop and investigate possible burglary of a closed commercial establishments when a suspect appears to be more than a passerby). possibility of an innocuous explanation of Ms. Johnson's location does not invalidate a reasonable officer from the minimal intrusion of an investigatory stop. Navarette, at 1691.

IV. By the time Deputy Kaschinske asked Ms. Johnson to perform SFSTs, the totality of the circumstances raised an objectively reasonable suspicion that Ms. Johnson had been driving while intoxicated.

As argued above, Deputy Kaschinske already possessed and objectively reasonable suspicion that Ms. Johnson was driving while intoxicated when he first encountered the blue Dodge van. Yet, before asking Ms. Johnson to perform standardized field sobriety tests, (an action that Ms. Johnson challenges as an unconstitutional seizure) Deputy Kaschinske had several additional pieces of information.

Def. Br. at 12. By the time Deputy Kaschinske asked Ms. Johnson to perform SFSTs the totality of the circumstances amply supported a reasonable suspicion that Ms. Johnson had been driving while intoxicated.

1) It was reasonable for Deputy Kaschinske to suspect that Ms. Johnson had driven the blue Dodge van to its location at the closed car dealership.

First, given the reliable anonymous report, Deputy

Kaschinske could reasonably infer that the blue Dodge van

had recently been driven from Highway 22 to its present

location. Given that the blue Dodge van was running, and

that Ms. Johnson was the only person in the vehicle—sitting

in the driver's seat—it was reasonable for Deputy

Kaschinske to presume Ms. Johnson was the suspect driver he
was looking for.

# 2) It was reasonable for Deputy Kaschinske to suspect that Ms. Johnson was intoxicated when she was driving.

In addition to the information provided by dispatch regarding a driver who had stopped to vomit before driving away at high speed, Deputy Kaschinske had also detected a "strong" odor of alcohol coming from inside the blue Dodge van, and shortly later, coming from Ms. Johnson herself.

R. 42: 11. Ms. Johnson's admission that she had been drinking only served to raise, not dispel, further suspicion that she may have consumed too much alcohol.

See, County of Jefferson v. Renz, 231 Wis.2d 293, 317, 603 N.W.2d 293 (1999). (Defendant's admission to consuming three beers considered an indicator of intoxication).

Ms. Johnson again attempts to consider the facts of this case in isolation by arguing that the odor of alcohol alone could not have justified a continuing investigation into the possibility that she had been driving while intoxicated. Def. Br. at 12. But, of course, that is not the only information that Deputy Kaschinske had. Given the driving complaint with specific information provided to—and

confirmed by—Deputy Kaschinske, the presence of Ms. Johnson behind the wheel, the odor of alcohol emanating from Ms. Johnson, and her admittance to drinking, it was objectively reasonable for Deputy Kaschinske to fully investigate whether Ms. Johnson had been driving while intoxicated. Asking Ms. Johnson to perform SFSTs was not the unlawful expansion that Ms. Johnson claims. It was, instead, the natural focus of Deputy Kaschinske's investigation. Therefore, Deputy Kaschinske did not violate the Fourth Amendment when he detained Ms. Johnson for the purpose of investigating whether or not she had been operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated. The Circuit Court did not err when it denied her motion to suppress and this court should uphold this conviction.

## CONCLUSION

For the reasons above, the County respectfully asks this Court to affirm the conviction.

Jordan A Lippert Assistant District Attorney Columbia County, Wisconsin Attorney for Plaintiff-Respondent State Bar No. 1086914

400 DeWitt St PO Box 638 Portage, WI 53901 Telephone: (608)742-9650

#### CERTIFICATION

I certify that this brief conforms to the rules contained in sec. 809.19(8)(b) and (c) for a brief produced using the following font:

Monospaced font: 10 characters per inch; double spaced; 1.5 inch margin on left side and 1 inch margins on the other 3 sides. The length of this brief is 18 pages.